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Memarial Fark, Gympée

Memorial Park is located on the traditional lands of the Gubbi Gubbi/Kabi Kabi people.

Sitting in the heart of the city, it is only a few short steps away from Gympie's historic
Mary Street, on a triangle of land bordered by River Road, Reef Street and Young Street.

After gold was discovered in 1867, the land was cleared for alluvial mining.
A sawmill was built there after the flood of 1870. Following a public meeting
in 1919, the site was eventually transformed into the

Memorial Park we know today.



Gold Mining

In 1867, gold was discovered and miners took up claims in the area
stretching from the Mary River along to what is now Memorial Park.
Trees were felled and a track was made - which is now River Road.

By mid-1868, the European diggers had abandoned their claims and
Chinese miners took over and reworked the ground.

The miners established an area on River Road where the skate park is
now. Here they produced vegetables and the area became known as
Pumpkin Flat. All the while, they were still mining the gold claims in the
Memorial Park area.

The flood of 1870 washed away most of this area and the alluvial
mining declined, making way for another industry — sawmilling.

View from Calton Hill, overlooking Pumpkin Flat
and the back of Mary Street, now Memorial Park late 1869,
photograph by Thomas Mathewson

Pumpkin Flat in flood



Th.e.Union Sawmill began in 1869 when.WiIIiam Ferguson, Union Sawmill, c1872
William Henderson and Robert Dath built the sawmill on allotments
F8 and F9 in Mary Street. After the 1870 flood, the mill was rebuilt

and over the next 47 years more mill buildings were erected behind
Mary Street on the former alluvial diggings.

During 1917, the Ferguson & Co’s Union Sawmill moved to the

site of the former Phoenix Goldmine at One Mile — this is now the
Council Depot in John Street. The move allowed logs to be received
and sawn timber to be sent by rail on the newly opened Mary Valley
Rail line.

After the sawmill moved, the River Road site became derelict until
the end of World War I.

The Union Sawmill — c1900. Photographer unknown Site of Memorial Park, Union Sawmill. Photographer unknown



The Making of
Memorial Parts

It was January 1919 when the Gympie Mayor,
Alderman Robert Stitt, presided over a

community meeting to decide on a memorial
to fallen soldiers. It was decided to establish a
memorial as a lasting tribute to those citizens
who had fallen during the Great War of 1914-
1918 and the Boer War of 1899-1902.

It was Arthur Henderson (son of Union

Sawmill owner, William Henderson) who

suggested a memorial in the form of a park

and announced that his family would donate Gympie Memorial Gardens,

. . Gympie Times,
’;he lar'\|(|j that was the former site of the Union Tuesday 15 July 1979, page 6
awmill.

At a public meeting on 26 March 1919,

the Henderson offer was accepted and a

committee was appointed to raise funds

and supervise the project. The Brisbane City Proposed soldiers’ memorial,
Council donated the services of The Brisbane Courier,
Harry Moore to design the park, which Saturday 11 January 1913, page 7
included an electricity supply for the park

at a time when electricity was just being

introduced to Gympie.

The Memorial Park,
Gympie Times,
Saturday May 31 1919, page 5



In June 1919, contractor Newell Kent Dawson was appointed to supervise the clearing and
levelling of the old sawmill site. This task employed returning soldiers, who were paid £3/4/-
for a 44 hour week. Moore's design was ready in July, and construction work continued

steadily.

The Nash Gully drain across the park was domed and covered, paths and gardens were laid
out, and a timber and wire fence was erected around the park perimeter to protect plantings
from wandering cattle and goats.

Note: The Reef Street side of this fence was removed in 1944, and subsequently the whole park
perimeter was laid open as it is today.

Surveyors plan of Memorial Park 1919

Doming Nash’s Gully, Gympie Times,
Thursday 4 December 1919, page 2



{be Bandstand

Brisbane City Council donated the services of its architect A. H. (Alfred Herbert) Foster, to design a
bandstand for the park. Foster also designed the bandstand in New Farm Park in Brisbane.

As well as serving as a war memorial, this structure honours a popular local band master,
F.T. (Frederick Thomas) Percival, who had died in 1907.

In September 1919, a tender for construction of the bandstand was awarded to Thomas James Dale, who
completed it at a cost of £550/3/-.

The bandstand became a popular spot for the people of Gympie.

F.T. Percival, conductor, musician, Gympie
Orchestral Society, Gympie Philharmonic,
Gympie Town Band

Completion of the bandstand, Gympie Times,
Bandstand, Memorial Park, c1920's, photograph J.H. Foster Thursday December 4 1919, page 2



Memorial Park, Christmas 1922

Memorial Park c1920s Bandstand, Memorial Park, 1920, possibly Barrett family



Gympie and Widgee District
fallen Soldiers” Memarial Farke Gates

Also in 1919, a competition was held by the Queensland
Institute of Architects for the design of Memorial Gates
at the Mary Street entrance to Memorial Lane.

The winner of the competition

was George Rae, a young

draftsman with Lange Powell

architects.

During 1920, foundations for the Memorial Gates were dug
and pillars, prepared by Brisbane monumental masons
A. L. (Andrew Lang) Petrie and Son, were erected.

These pillars display the names of 167 World War | and

two Boer War soldiers from Gympie. The wrought-

iron gates were fabricated by

local iron founders,
J. K. (James Knight) Coombe
and Son.



(he Princes Visit
Memorial Lane, Memorial Park and
the bandstand were ready for the
brief visit, on 3 August 1920, of
Edward, Prince of Wales. The Prince
arrived in Gympie by train and was
driven by car through cheering
crowds to Memorial Park. At the
bandstand, he was formally welcomed
and made a short speech, before
returning to the railway station
through Memorial Lane. To avoid
giving offence by accepting some
invitations and declining others, the
Prince had decided not to ‘open’ any
war memorials on his Australian tour,
and the official opening of Memorial
Park had to wait.

Prince of Wales visit to Gympie,
3 August 1920, at Memorial Park,
Major L. J Thomas on left of photo

Prince of Wales leaving Memorial Park, 3 August 1920



The Official Cpening

On 9 February 1921, the trustees handed Memorial Park and Memorial The project was officially opened by Gympie's popular war hero,

Lane over to the Gympie City Council. Public support had been Major-General Sir William Glasgow, on Wednesday, 20 April 1921.
generous. £5,587/7/7 had been raised and the project was completed, This event was accompanied by a procession, a carnival, a concert and
free of debt, at a cost of £5507/7/7. Thomas Watts, a Welsh miner, was several days of celebrations.

appointed the first caretaker of the Park. He was succeeded by his son,
Thomas Watts, Jnr.



Returned Soldiers Carnival, Gympie Times, Thursday 21 April 1921, page 3

On Saturday, 23 April 1921, the pioneer aviator Bert Hinkler, whose
grandparents lived in Gympie, flew low over Memorial Park before landing
at the showgrounds at Southside. His Avro Baby aeroplane was towed to
Memorial Park and displayed there for several days.



On 1 April 1921, war trophies in the form of captured field guns arrived
in Gympie. Three of these guns, supplied by the Commonwealth
Government, became features along the Young Street side of Memorial
Park. In 1946, after an accident in which a young boy had his finger
crushed while playing on one of the guns, the Gympie City Council
removed them from the Park and disposed of them.

In April 1939, the base of a memorial fountain that had been erected
in 1915 to honour Gympie's discoverer, James Nash, was moved from
near the Gympie Town Hall to the corner of Reef Street and River Road
in Memorial Park, where it remains today.

In 1940, after the outbreak of World War Il, underground air raid
shelters accommodating up to thirty people were dug in Memorial
Park, adjacent to the bandstand. In a reminder of early goldmining,
they were walled in like shafts, reinforced by concrete, roofed in timber
and covered over with earth. After the war they were filled in.

Memorial Park and River Road, Gympie,
showing James Nash Memorial

Betty Carswell and Joan McCormack
on a gun in Memorial Park



In Memorial Park on Remembrance Day, 11 November 1988, Colonel
Colin Townsend unveiled a plaque to honour servicemen and women
who served in post-World War Il conflicts.

The plaque, which is mounted on a six-tonne sandstone block carved
with a cross, was dedicated by P.V. Kenny. It is surrounded by a circled
wall that is dedicated to those who served in Korea, Borneo, Malaya
and Vietnam. Each of the pavers is inscribed with the relevant places of
conflict.



Another stone monument is dedicated to the memory of two national
servicemen who lost their lives during active service in Borneo and

Vietnam.
Peace Pole

During the International Year of Volunteers in 2001, a 2.5 metre Peace
Pole was installed in the park dedicated to the volunteers of Cooloola.



On Monday 7 June 2021, a monument and
plaque honouring First Nations service men and
women was unveiled by Aunty Lillian Burke.

The monument honours the thousands of
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander service men
and women who have fought for and defended
Australia in military service. The First Nations
people’s military contribution and cultural
heritage has not always been duly recognised.

The unveiling was commemorated with a
smoking ceremony, songs, formal addresses by
military personnel and The Ode read by Uncle
Eric Law AM, a Wakka Wakka man and Vietnam
veteran.

The reconciliation initiative was proudly supported by the
Department of Seniors, Disability Services and Aboriginal
and Torres Strait Islander Partnerships through the
Celebrating Reconciliation Small Grants Program.



tloods

Memorial Park has survived many floods over the last 100 years, the largest
being in February 2022 where the flood height reached 22.91 metres.

Memorial Park in flood 20 April 1928 Memorial Park in flood June 1983 Aerial view of city centre and Memorial Park
— taken from Young Street during the 1988 flood
Memorial Park in flood 26 April 1989 Memorial Park in flood February 1999 Memorial Park in flood 10 January 2011

— photograph by Les Priddy — photograph by Greg Weir



Memorial Park in flood, 26 February 2022



On Queensland Day 1999, to commemorate Queensland Day and the
new millennia, Mayor Mick Venardos and Councillor Annette Reilly

buried a time capsule near the bandstand. The capsule is set to open
on 7 June 2099.

Now in its second century, Memorial Park remains a vital and much-
loved icon of the Gympie region. On a location steeped in the city’s
gold-mining history, right next to the central business district, the
park commemorates those who served their country in wartime while
providing a peaceful, welcoming environment — a place where locals
and visitors can enjoy a picnic lunch, the shade of the bandstand or a
leisurely stroll among the trees and birdlife.



